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SUBJECT: 'REASON TO BELIEVE RECOMMENDATION — 2007 APRIL
QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE ADMINISTRATIVE FINE
PROGRAM

Attached is a list of political committees and their treasurers’ th failed to file the
2007 April Quarterly Report in accordance with 2 U.S.C. 434(a). The Apnl Quarterly .
Report was due on April 15, 2007

The committees hsted in the attached RTB Circulation Report either failed. to file
the report, filed the report more than five (5) days after the due date, or filed the report
more than thirty (30) days after the due date (considered a non-filed report). .In
accordance with the schedule of civil money penalties for reports at 11 C.F.R. 111.43,
these committees should be assessed the civil money penalties hlghllghted on the
attached 01rculat10n report.

Recommendation

1. Find reason to believe that all other political committees and their treasurers listed on
the RTB Circulation Report violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a preliminary
determination that the civil money penalties would be the amounts indicated on the
RTB Circulation Report.

2. Send the appropriate letters.
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
)
Reason To Believe Recommendation 2007 )
April Quarterly Report for the )
ks - Administrative Fine Program: )
K MCEWEN, BOB, and MCEWEN, LIZ as ) AF#1740
g;f treasurer; )
- STUART, CHARLES SAMUEL, and ) AF#1741
0 JEFFREY S. BERGER as treasurer; )
N _ BENGUR, O R OZ, and JOANNE M ) AF#1742
g; RUBIN as treasurer; )
e SHEPHERD, DERRICK, and BYRON LEE ) AF# 1743
o ‘ as treasurer; )
| JAMES, DONZELLA, and ELMO JAMES ) AF# 1744
as treasurer; )
ENRIQUEZ, FRANK, and PRESTON E ) AF# 1745
HENRICHSON as treasurer; )
CHEEK, VANCE W JR, and FRANK ) AF#1746
LITTLE as treasurer; )
GRAF, RANDALL RANDY, and ) AF# 1747
THOMAS E LINN as treasurer; )
SULZER, JOSEPH P, and ROBERT ) AF#1748
HITCHENS as treasurer; )
MEIJIAS, DAVID L, and MICHAEL G ) AF#1749
NORMAN as treasurer; ) ’
ANDREWS, EMANUEL C, and STEPHEN ) AF#1750
‘R BOKSER as treasurer; )
SCHWARZ, JOHN, and ROBERT HANS ) AF# 1751
SCHULER as treasurer; )
COX, T J, and SUSAN W SEIDEN as ) AF#1754
treasurer; ) A
VAS, JOSEPH, and RAMOS, MELVIN as ) AF# 1755
)

treasurer;
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Federal Election C{@hission . Page 2

Certification for Administrative Fines
July 12, 2007

CERTIFICATION

I, Mary W. Dove, Secretary of the Federal Election Commission, do hereby
certify that on July 12, 2007 the Commission took the following actions on the Reason
To Believe Recommendation 2007 April Quarterly Report for the Administrative Fine
Program, as recommended in the Reports Analysis Division's Memorandum dated July

06, 2007, on the following committees:

AF#1740 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that MCEWEN,
BOB, and MCEWEN, LIZ as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a preliminary
determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on the report;
(2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von Spakovsky, Walther,
and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1741 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that STUART,
CHARLES SAMUEL, and JEFFREY S. BERGER as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a)
and make a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount
indicated on the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason,
von Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1742 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that BENGUR, O R
0Z, and JOANNE M RUBIN as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a
preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on
the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1743 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that SHEPHERD,
DERRICK, and BYRON LEE as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a
preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on
the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1744 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that JAMES,
DONZELLA, and ELMO JAMES as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a
preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on
the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.
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Federal Election (gnission . Page 3
Certification for Administrative Fines :
July 12, 2007 '

AF#1745 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that ENRIQUEZ,
FRANK, and PRESTON E HENRICHSON as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and
make a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount
indicated on the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason,
von Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1746 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that CHEEK,
VANCE W JR, and FRANK LITTLE as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a
preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on
the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1747 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that GRAF,
RANDALL RANDY, and THOMAS E LINN as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and
make a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount
indicated on the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason,
von Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1748 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that SULZER,
JOSEPH P, and ROBERT HITCHENS as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a
preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on
the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1749 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that MEJIAS,
DAVID L, and MICHAEL G NORMAN as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make
a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated
on the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1750 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that ANDREWS,
EMANUEL C, and STEPHEN R BOKSER as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and
make a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount
indicated on the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason,
von Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1751 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that SCHWARZ,
JOHN, and ROBERT HANS SCHULER as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make
a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated
on the report; (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von
Spakovsky, Walther, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.
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AF#1754 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that COX, T J, and
SUSAN W SEIDEN as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a preliminary
determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on the report;
(2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von Spakovsky, Walther,
and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.

AF#1755 Decided by a vote of 5-0 to: (1) find reason to believe that VAS, JOSEPH,

Pou A and RAMOS, MELVIN as treasurer violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and make a preliminary

L determination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on the report;
:S? (2) send the appropriate letter. Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von Spakovsky, Walther,
- and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

July 16, 2007

Robert Hitchens

Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee
P.O. Box 165

Chillicothe, OH 45601

C00414102
AF#: 1748

Dear Robert Hitchens:

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"), requires that your
committee file an April Quarterly Report of Receipts and Disbursements every calendar year. This
report, covering the period through March 31st, shall be filed no later than April 15th. 2 U.S.C.
434(a). Records at the Federal Election Commission ("FEC") indicate that this report was not filed
within thirty (30) days of the due date. You should file this report if you have not already done so.

The Act was further amended in 1999 to permit the FEC to impose civil money penalties
for violations of the reporting requirements of 2 U.S.C. 434(a). 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(4). On 7/12/2007,
the FEC found that there is reason to believe ("RTB") that Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and
you, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) by failing to file timely this report on or before April
15th. Based on the FEC's schedules of civil money penalties at 11 C.F.R. 111.43, the amount of
your civil money penalty calculated at the RTB stage is $4,500. It is due by 8/21/2007 and is based
on these factors:

Election Sensitivity of Report: Not Election Sensitive
Level of Activity: $143,057

Number of Days Late: Not Filed

Number of Previous Civil Money Penalties Assessed: 0 - -

To Pay the Calculated Civil Money Penalty -

To pay the calculated civil money penalty, send the enclosed remittance and your payment
to the FEC at the address on page 3. Upon receipt of your payment, the FEC will send you a final
determination letter.

To Challenge the RTB Finding and/or Calculated Civil Money Penalty

To challenge the RTB finding and/or calculated civil money penalty, you must submit a
written response, including the AF# found on page one, to the FEC's Office of Administrative
Review, 999 E Street, NW, Washington, DC 20463. Your response must be received by 8/21/2007.
Your written response must include the reason(s) why you are challenging the RTB finding and/or
calculated civil money penalty. The FEC will only consider challenges that are based on a factual
error, miscalculation of the calculated civil money penalty by the FEC, or the existence of
extraordinary circumstances that persisted for more than 48 hours that were beyond your control
and prevented you from filing the report in a timely manner. Your response must include the
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factual basis supporting the reason(s) and supporting documentation. The FEC strongly encourages
that documents be submitted in the form of affidavits or declarations. Examples of circumstances
that will not be considered extraordinary include, but are not limited to, negligence, problems with

vendors or contractors, staff illness, computer failures and similar circumstances. 11 C.F.R.
111.35(b)(1)(iii) and (4).

Your failure to raise an argument in a timely fashion during the administrative process
shall be deemed a waiver of your right to present such argument in a petition to the district court
under 2 U.S.C. 437g. 11 C.F.R. 111.38.

If you intend to be represented by counsel, please advise the Office of Administrative
Review. You should provide, in writing, the name, address and telephone number of your counsel
and authorize counsel to receive notifications and communications relating to this challenge and
imposition of the calculated civil money penalty.

If You Do Not Pay the Calculated Civil Money Penalty or Submit a Challenge

If you do not pay the calculated civil money penalty or submit a written response, the FEC
will assume that the preceding factual allegations are true and make a final determination that Joe
Sulzer for Congress Committee and you, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. 434(a) and assess a civil

~ money penalty.

Unpaid civil money penalties assessed through the Administrative Fine regulations will be
subject to the Debt Collection Act of 1982 ("DCA") as amended by the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. 3701 et seq. The FEC may take any and all appropriate action
authorized and required by the DCA, as amended, including transfer to the U.S. Department of the
Treasury for collection. 11 C.F.R. 111.45.

This matter was generated based on information ascertained by the FEC in the normal
course of carrying out its supervisory responsibilities. 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(2). It will remain
confidential in accordance with 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(4)(B) and 437g(a)(12)(A) until it is placed on the
public record in accordance with 11 C.F.R. 111.42, unless you notify the FEC in writing that you
wish the matter to be made public.

Additional information on the FEC's administrative fine program, including the final
regulations, is located at the FEC's website at www.FEC.gov. If you have questions regarding the
payment of the calculated civil money penalty, please contact Rhiannon Ryan in the Reports
Analysis Division at our toll free number (800) 424-9530 (at the prompt press 5) or (202) 694-1130.
If you have questions regarding the submission of a challenge, please contact the Office of
Administrative Review at our toll free number (800) 424-9530 (press 0, then ext. 1660) or (202)
694-1660.

Sincerely,

Ll

Robert D. Lenhard
Chairman
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ADMINISTRATIVE FINE REMITTANCE & PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS

In accordance with the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. 111.43, the amount of your civil
money penalty calculated at RTB is $4,500 for the 2007 April Quarterly Report.

Please mail this remittance with a check or money order made payable to the Federal
Election Commission to the following address:

Federal Election Commission
P.O. Box 979058
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

If you choose to send your remittance and payment by courier or overnight delivery, please
use this address:

U.S. Bank - Government Lockbox

FEC #979058

1005 Convention Plaza

Attn: Government Lockbox, SL-MO-C2GL
St. Louis, MO 63101

The remittance and your payment are due by 8/21/2007. Upon receipt of your remittance
and payment, the FEC will send you a final determination letter.

PAYMENTS BY PERSONAL CHECK

Personal checks will be converted into electronic funds transfers (EFTS). Your account will
be electronically debited for the amount on your check, usually within 24 hours, and the debit will
appear on your regular statement. We will destroy your original check and keep a copy of it. In
case the EFT cannot be processed for technical reasons, you authorize us to process the copy in lieu
of the original check. Should the EFT not be completed because of insufficient funds, we may try
to make the transfer twice.

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN THE PORTION BELOW WITH YOUR PAYMENT

FOR: Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee
FEC ID#: C00414102

AF#: 1748

PAYMENT DUE DATE: 8/21/2007

PAYMENT AMOUNT DUE: $4,500
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SULZER FOR CONGRESS COMMITTEE

38 SOUTH PAINT STREET
CHILLICOTHE, OHIO 45601
740-774-6320
Robert Hitchens,
Treasurer

August 6, 2007

Federal Elections Commission
Office of Administrative Review
999 E Street, NW

Washington, D. C. 20463

RE: C00414102
AF#: 1748

Dear Commission Members:

With this correspondence I, on behalf of the Committee and its Treasurer, appeal the
decision of the FEC by its letter dated July 16, 2007.

An order has been issued by the FEC imposing a civil penalty against the Committee
and or its Treasurer in the amount of $4,500.00. This penalty is for failure to file the
April Quarterly Report for 2007.

It is the Committee’s and the Treasurer’s position that the fine is excessive and
unreasonable. With the end of the primary election in May, 2006, the undersigned and
the Treasurer have been without the assistance of any staff members that previously
maintained and filed the FEC reports. Hence, it has been a struggle in working with the
software in order to properly report and file the necessary reports with the FEC.

In June of this year the undersigned again retained the services of the software
company to assist in preparing and filing reports with the FEC. Unfortunately, the
software company would not assist any further until another substantial payment was
made to them. Due to the lack of funds in the campaign account and the personal
financial struggle of the undersigned, it was not until two weeks ago that the software
company began to assist the undersigned in the preparation and filing of the necessary
reports.

2



As of the date of this letter not only have all quarterly reports been filed and or
amended but a termination of the committee was prepared and filed as well. As a result
there are no funds left in the campaign account, which has been closed as well.

In fact, because the undersigned was attempting to file correct reports and with the
difficulty of using the software as noted above the quarterly reports to the FEC
incorrectly reported the actual cash on hand. The reported actual cash on hand far
exceeded the actual amount in the account. This is reflected in the corrected quarterly
reports as filed with the FEC.

I appeal to the compassion and reasonableness of the FEC to forgive the $4,500.00
penalty assessed since the Committee never had the funds available to pay such a heavy

:,?; fine. I also appeal the fact that neither I nor the Treasurer has the resources personally to
o pay such a fine.

!::"H"

" With the fact that a termination of the committee has been filed with the FEC as of
&{% today and the circumstances as outlined above I respectfully ask the FEC to forgive the
o entire $4,500.00 penalty assessed against the Committee.

1]

<0

™ Respectfully submitted,

2

h P. Sulzer.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

Via First Class Mail

August 14, 2007

Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer

Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee
P.O. Box 165

Chillicothe, Ohio 45601

C00414102
AF# 1748

Dear Mr. Hitchens:

On August 13, 2007, the Commission received the written response (“challenge”)
from Joseph P. Sulzer which is being reviewed by the Office of Administrative Review.
If you have any questions regarding your challenge, please contact this Office on our toll
free number (800) 424-9530 (press 0, then ext. 1660) or (202) 694-1660.

Sincerely,

ﬂ)ﬂ%a Jk/

Shawn Woodhead Werth
Reviewing Officer
Office of Administrative Review
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Date: August 14, 2007

REFERRAL TO OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW
CHALLENGE RECEIVED

AF#: 1748
Committee Name: Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee
Committee ID#: C00414102

Committee Address (if different than in RTB letter): 38 South Paint Street
Chillicothe, OH 45601

Treasurer Name (if different than in RTB finding): N/A
Attachments:

Copy of RTB Circulation Report, dated July 6, 2007 and RTB Certification,
dated July 12,2007: Y
Attachment #: 1
Certified Return Receipt (to be forwarded at later date if not yet received)(Y/N):Y
Attachment #: 2

Original Correspondence Received by RAD in Response to RTB Letter (Y/N): N
Attachment #: N/A
RAD Staff Declaration (Y/N): Y
-Non-Filer Letter, dated April 30, 2007.
-RTB Letter, dated July 16, 2007.
Attachment #: 4
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DECLARATION OF PATRICIA CARMONA

| am the Chief of the Compliance Branch for the Reports Analysis Division of the Federal
Election Commission (“Commission”). In my capacity as Chief of the Compliance Branch, |
oversee the initial processing of the Administrative Fine Program. | make this declaration
based on my personal knowledge and, if called upon as a witness, could and would testify
competently to the following matters.
| hereby certify that documents identified herein are true and accurate copies of the following
sent by the Commission to Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee:
A) Non-Filer Letter, dated April 30, 2007, referencing the 2007 April Quarterly
Report;
B) Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated July 16, 2007, referencing the 2007 April
Quarterly Report.
| hereby certify that | have searched the Commission’s public records and find that Joe Sulzer
for Congress Committee filed the 2007 April Quarterly Report with the Commission on August
3,2007.
Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1746, | declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and
correct and that all relevant telecoms for the matter have been provided. This declaration

was executed at Washington, D.C. on the 14" day of August, 2007.

Patricia Carmona
Chief, Compliance Branch

Reports Analysis Division
Federal Election Commission
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION April 30, 2007
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

RQ-7

Robert Hitchens, Treasurer

Joe Sulzer For Congress Committee
P.O. Box 165

Chillicothe, OH 458601

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: C00414102
Reference: April Quarterly Report 1/1/2007 - 3/31/2007

Dear Treasurer:

It has come to the attention of the Federal Election Commission that you may
have failed to file the above referenced report of receipts and expenditures as
required by the Federal Rlectlon Campaign Act, as amended. You were previously
notified of the due date for this report.

It is important that you file this report immediately with the Federal Election
Commission, 999 E Street, N.W., Washington, D.C, 20463 for House candidates, or the
Secretary of the Senate, 232 Hart Senate office building, Washington, D.C. 20510,
for Senate candidates. Please note that electronic filers must gubmit their reports
electronically, as per 11 CFR §104.18. A copy of the report must alsc be filed with
the Secretary of State or equivalent State officer unless the State is exempt from
the federal requirement to receive and maintain paper copies. You can verify the
Commicssion’s - receipt of any documents submitted by your committee on the FEC
webgite at www.fec.gov.

The failure to timely £file this report may result in civil money penalties, an
audit or legal enforcement action. The civil money penalty calculation for late
reportes does not include a grace period and begins on the day following the due
date for the report. Due to heightened security screening measures, delivery of
mail by the US Postal Service may be delayed. The Commission recommends that you
submit your report via overnight delivery or courier service.

If you have any questions regarding thip matter, please contact Swapna Krishna
at our toll free number (800)424-9530. Our direct local number is (202)694-1130.

Sincerely,
im Sl

John D. Gibson
Assistant Staff Director
Reports Analysis Division (RAD)
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463~ -

November 20, 2007
MEMORANDUM | |
To: The Commission SENSITIVE
® Through: Patrina M. Clark ‘ﬂ)(/

%ﬁ Staff Director
] .
EiJl “From: John D. Gibson
- Chief Complianck]Officer
€
W Shawn Woodhead We
™ Reviewing Officer
Office of Administrative Review
By: _Jill Sugarman
Reviewing Analyst
Subject: AF# 1748 - Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and Robert Hitchens, as
Treasurer (C00414102)

The attached Reviewing Officer Recommendation is being circulated on an
informational basis. A copy was also sent to the respondents in accordance with
11 CFR. § 111.36(f). The respondents may file with the Commission Secretary a written
response within 10 days of transmittal of the recommendation.

After the 10 day period, the Reviewing Officer Recommendation and the respondents’

written response, if any, will be circulated to the Commission to make a final
determination.

Attachment
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OFFICIL’ OF iADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW (“OAR”)

AF# 1748 - Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer
-(C00414102)

On July 12, 2007, the Commission found reason tb' believe (“RTB”) that the

respondents violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) for failing to file the 2007 April Quarterly Report and
made a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $4,500 based on the

- schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43. They were notified by the Reports Analysis
- Division. (“RAD”) on July 16, 2007, of the Commission’s RTB finding and civil money

penalty. The letter, sent to the address of record, was returned to the Commission on July 30,

...2007; however, the_copy of the letter sent to the altemate “address prov1ded by the
respondents 38 South Paint Street, Chillicothe, OH 45601, - was received on July 18,2007: ~

Resgondents’ Response

On August 13, 2007, the Commission received.the written response (“challenge”)
from the Candidate, on behalf of the respondents, who states that, since the Primary Election
in May 2006, he and the Treasurer have been without the staff who maintained and filed the

- reports. Consequently, he struggled with the software to properly disclose the data and file

the necessary reports. In June, he once more retained the services of the software company,

but they refused to provide further assistance until a substantial payment was made to them.

Due to the lack of funds in the campaign account and the Candidate’s own financial troubles,
it was not until late July that the software company began to help in the preparatlon and ﬁhng
of the reports ' _

'All quarterly reports including a Termination  Report have now been filed, the

* campaign account is closed, and the quarterly reports were amended to fix cash-on-hand
- balances misreported on earlier filings due to his difficuities in using the software. He

appeals to the Commission’s compassion and reasonableness to forgive the penalty, which he
calls unreasonable and excessive, since the Committee has no leftover funds and neither he
nor the Treasurer is able to pay the fine.

Analysis of Challenge

The April Quarterly Report was filed on August 3, 2007, 110 days late.

The Federal Election Campaign Act (“Act”) requires that a report for the -quarter
ending March 31, 2007 be filed no later than April 15, 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(A)(ii) and
11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(1)(i). Reports filed electronically must be received and validated at or
before 11:59 p.m. Eastern Standard/Daylight Time on April 15, 2007 to be timely filed.
11 CFR. §§ 104.5(c) and 100.19(c). The treasurer shall be personally responsible for the
timely filing of reports. 11 C.F.R. § 104.14(d).

1

ove»mber 20,2007 .




The respondents were notified on two occasions that they must file this report On:
April 16, the day after the report was due, the Electronic Filing Office (“EFO™) sént a notice
to the email address which they prevxously provided, jabbey@ joesulzer.com, mfomung them
that they had failed to file the feport. They were notified a second time when RAD sent thein
the Non-Filer Notice on April 30. There is no indication from RAD’s telecoms (written
records of telephone conversations) or the EFO logs that the respondents tried to contact
anyone or electronically file the report in response to these notifications. In addition, -during
the June 13 call with the Analyst, when the Candidate called for help with another report, the
Analyst told him that the 2007 April Quarterly Report was outstanding and stressed the
1mportance of ﬁhng it. _

" At the time of the RTB finding for the Apnl Quarterly Report, the Commlssmn had
not received the report; therefore, the estimated level of activity ($143,057) was used to
calculate the RTB civil money penalty ‘On August 3, 2007, the respondents filed the April
Quarterly Report which discloses total receipts of $0 and total disbursements of $36, resulting

- in a level of activity totaling $36. Since the schedule of penailties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43(a)(2)

states that a penalty for respondents with no prior violations shall not exceed the level of
activity in the report, the civil money penalty for the April Quanerly Report is $36 (reduced
from the RTB civil money penalty of $4,500). , _

'Negligence, delays caused by vendors, and unavailability of the Treasurer and other
staff are included at 11 C.F.R. § 111.35(d) as examples of circumstances that are not
considered reasonably unforeseen and beyond the respondents’ control. The other issues
raised in the challenge (the inability of the Committee, Candidate or Treasurer to pay the fine
and the filing of a Termination Report) also do not fall-within the list of defenses enumerated
at 11 CF.R. § 111.35(b). These are: (i) the RTB finding is based on factual errors; and/or
(ii) the improper calculation of the civil money penalty; and/or (iii) they: used best efforts to
file on time but were prevented from doing so by reasonably unforeseen circumstances that
were beyond their control and they filed the report no later than 24 hours after the end of
these circumstances. The Reviewing Officer, therefore, recommends that the' Commission
make a final determination that the respondents violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and assess a civil
money penalty of $36 (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $4,500).
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/48 involvinig the Joe Sulzer for
Treasurer, in ‘making the final

(2) Make a final determination in AF# 1748 that the J oe Sulzer for Congress Committee and
Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and, based on the actual level of
activity disclosed on the April Quarterly Report ($36), assess -a civil money penalty of
$36 (reduced from the RTB civil money of $4,500); and

(3) Send the appropriate letter.

Reviewing Analyst: Jill I. Sugarman
Attachments

Attachment 1 — Challenge Received from Respondents

~Attachment 2 — — S _;_____:.A_

Attachment 3 — Declaration from RAD,E 'Certiﬁed Mail Green Card,
and Memorandum to File
Attachment 4 — Declaration from OAR
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. : o : . | Attachment #4 -

6 Pages

'DECLA’RATION"OF JILLE. 'SUGARMAN

I am the Rcwewmg Analyst in the Office of Admxmstratlve Review for the FederaI_
Election Commission (“Commission™. In my capacity as Reviewing Analyst,

- conduct research with respect to all challenges subrmtted in accordance with the

Administrative Fine program.

The 2007 April Quarterly Report is due April 15, 2007. If electromcally filed, it must
be received and validated by the Commission at or before 11 59 p.m,, Eastem
Standard/Daylight Time on April 15 to be timely filed.

It is the practice of Commission’s Information Division to send, via email, prior
notification of a report’s due date to committees and treasurers approximately 3
weeks before the due date if they have provided an email address on the Statement of
Organization. It is also the practice of this Division to place reporting notices on the

Commission’s web site for public access at

http://www .fec.gov/info/report_dates.shtml#quarterly.

I hereby certify that I have searched the Commission’s public records ‘and that the
documents identified herein are the true and accurate copies of ‘Page 1 of the
Summary Page and Page 4 of the Detailed Summary Page for the 2007 April
Quarterly Report -electronically filed by the Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and
Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer. According to the Commission’s records, the report
covers the period from January 1 through March 31, 2007, and was received on
August 3, 2007. Lines 24 and 26 list $0.00 in total receipts and $36.00 in total
disbursements, respectively, for the reporting period.

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct and that this declaration was executed at Washington on the 20™ of
November, 2007.

Reviewing Analyst
Office of Administrative Review
Federal Election Commission



3 APRIL QUARTERLY

'FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

CONGRESSIONAL COMMITTEES March 22, 2007

CURRENT REPORT DUE:

REG./CERT.&

REPORTING OVERNIGHT FILING
§ REPORT PERIOD ' MAILING DEADLINE DEADLINE

[ April Quarterly | 01/01/07 - 03/31/07 04/15/07 04/15/07 2

REPORTING SCHEDULE FOR REMAINDER OF 2007:

REG./CERT. &

; REPORTING OVERNIGHT FILING
I REPORT PERIOD ' MAILING DEADLINE DEADLINE

July Quarterly -04/01/07 - 06/30/07 | 07/15/07 07/15/07
| October Quarterly | -07/01/07 - 09/30/07 10/15/07 10/15/07
Year-End 10/01/07 - 12/31/07 01/31/08 01/31/08

Supplemental Filing Information is available on pages 2-and 3 of this notice.

'These dates indicate the beginning and the end of the reporting period. A reporting period always begins the

day after the closing date of the last report filed. If the committee is new and has not previously filed a report the

first report must cover all act1v1ty that occurred before the committee registered.

INotice that this filing date falls on a weekend. Filing deadlines are not extended when they fall on nonworking
days. Accordingly, reports filed by methods other than Registered, Certified or Overnight Mail, or electronically,
must be received before the Commission’s (or the Secretary of the Senate’s) close of business on the last business

day before the deadline.

Page 1
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i Congressional Committeds
April Quarterly Report Notice

SUPPLEMENTAL FILING INF ORMATION

PLEASE NOTE: The. Commzssxon provxdes reminders of upcoming ﬁhng dates as a courtesy to
help committees comply with the filing deadlines set forth in the Act and Commission regulations.
Committee treasurers must comply with all applicable filing deadlines established by law, and the lack
of prior notice -does not constitute an excuse for failing to comply with any filing deadline.

WHO MUST FILE

Principal campaign committees of congressional candxdates (including unopposed candidates and
candidates whose names do not appear on the ballot) must file Quarterly Reports.’ Before a
committee can stop filing with the FEC, it must file a termination report with the Commission.
Committees must continue to file reports untxl the Commxssxon notlﬁes them in wrltmg that their
termination report has- been accepted ' ' S C

METHODS OF FILING REPORTS

Electronic Filing

Reports filed electronically must be received and validated by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the ﬁhng
deadline. For additional information, call the Electronic Filing Office at (800) 424- 9530 or

(202) 694-1642 or visit our website at www.fec.gov/elecfil/electron.shtml. ' «

Under the Comm1ss1on 's mandatory electronic filing regulatlons U.S. House committees that receive
contributions or make expendltures in excess of $50,000 in a calendar year, or that have reason to
expect to do so, must file all reports and statements with. the FEC electronically. Other U. S. House
committees may voluntanly file electromcally, however, any entity that files electronically, whether
required to do so or not, must comply.with the electronic filing rules. U.S. Senate committees that
file with the Secretary of the Senate are not subject to the mandatory electronic filing rules, but may
file an unofficial copy of their reports with the Commission in order to speed disclosure.

Registered & Certlﬁed Mail

Reports sent by Registered or Certified Mail must be postmarked on or before the mailing deadline
to be considered timely filed. A committee sending its reports by Certified Mail should keep its
certified mailing receipt with the U.S. Postal Service (USPS) postmark as proof of filing because the
USPS does not keep complete records of items sent by Certified Mail. A committee sending its
report by Registered Mail should keep its proof of mailing. Note that a Certificate of Mailing from
the USPS is not sufficient to prove that a report is timely filed using Registered, Certified or
Overnight Mail.

3Generally, an individual becomes a candidate for Federal office (and thus triggers registration and reporting
obligations) when his or her campaign exceeds $5,000 in either contributions received or expenditures made. If the
campaign has not exceeded the $5 000 threshold it is not required to file reports. See also 11 CFR 100.3(a)(2)-& (3).

““If the campaign has more than one authorized committee in addition to the principal campaign committee, the
principal campaign committee must also file a consolidated report on Form 3Z.

Page 2
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Congressional Committees
April Quarterly Report Notice

OV * includes Pnonty or Exptcssf’vl il havmg
a dehvery conﬁrma’uon, or an overmght dehvery service with which the report is scheduled for next
business day delivery and is recorded in the service’s on-line tracking system.

Other Means of Filing
Reports filed by any other means—including first class and couner-——must be received by the
Commission (or for Senate committees, the Secretary of the Senate) before the close of business on

the last business day before the filing deadline.

Paper forms are available at the FEC website at www.fec.gov/info/forms.shtml.

COMPLIANCE

Treasurer Responsibility. Treasurers of porlitAiéal' éibm'm}itvtées are responsible for both the
timeliness and the accuracy of all reports. They may be subject to monetary penalties if reports are
inaccurate or are not filed on time.

Administrative Fine Program. Under the Administrative Fine Program, political committees and
their treasurers who fail to file their reports on time may be subject to civil money penalties up to
$16,000 (or more for repeat late- and non-filers).” For additional information, visit the FEC websxte
at www.fec.gov/af/af shtml. '

Report Format. In addition, political committees that file illegible reports or use non-FEC forms
(except for FEC-approved, computer -generated forms) will be required to refile their reports.

Electronic Filers Must File Electromcally Electronic filers who instead file on paper, or:who
submit an electronic report (either by direct transmission, 3.5” diskette or CD) that does not pass the
validation program by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the filing deadline, will be considered non-filers
and may be subject to enforcement actions (including administrative fines).

Form 3Z-1. Principal campaign committees of U.S. House and U.S. Senate candidates running in
2008 must file FEC Form 3Z-1 as part of their 2007 July Quarterly and Year-End Reports. The
information provided on this form allows opposing candidates to compute their “gross receipts
advantage" which is used to determine whether a candidate is entitled to increased contribution and
coordinated expenditure limits under the "Millionaires' Amendment."®

3 Penalties for late- or non-filing of 48-hour notices are based on the amount of contributions not timely disclosed. As
a result, these penalties may exceed $16,000, even for first-time violations.

$See Millionaires’ Amendment brochure on the FEC website at www.fec.gov/pages/brochures/millionaire.shtml.

FOR INFORMATION, CALL: (800) 424-9530 or (202) 694-1100

Page 3
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REPORT oF RECEIPTS

08/03/2007 16 : 63

FORM 3 Foran Authorlzad Commiee -
. . Qffica Use Only
1. NAMEQF USE PECMAILING LABEL  ExarmplelF typing, tyge
COMMITTEE(nful)  OR'TYPE OR PRINTy o..é“?m gy 0P
Joe Sulzer for Congress. Commitbtee
llllllllll [ [ | [ | I A | | A I B | Ill
llllllllll 1 1 L1 1 l‘ll Lt 1 1.1 L1 1 1 lll
AgDRESB (umber and streety | 2] S0ujh Paipt Strpe] | I | 14 111 ta
Check I dfferant L L1 Ll § W U 11 Lt 1.1 (| l
than previcusty -
repotted. (ACK) | Citlicathg 11 NI R S A/ 0 S T o B AR
2. FECIDENTIFICATION-NUMBER ¥ CITY A STATEA ZIPCODE A
' STATE ¥ DISTRICT
00414102 3. ISTHIS x  NEW oR AMENDED) - :
» REPORT - {N) W IOE | .l1g l
4, "TYPEOF REPORT (Choose Onel :
1ty 12-Day PRE-Election Report for the:
(e) Quarterly Reports: - ‘ . - )
: Pdmary (12F) General (126} Runoff (12R)
% Apri45 Quartarly Report (1) . ' o
‘Convartion (12C) 8pecial (128)
Juy 15 Quatteny Repart |32)
) ‘ : An the
Ociober 15 Ouarterly Repat (Q3) - Blection on . Stete of
January 31 Year-End Repat (YEY - | (r)  30-Day POST-Eleclion Report 107 the:
' General (3051 RuncAF {30R) Special (30S)
‘ : . in the
Termiratian Repﬁlt (TER] Blaction on State of
5. Coveiing Period D1 a4 2007 through 0..3 ' 31 2407
| cettify that | heve examinad this Report and ta the best of my imowledge and belflef it 13 true, cormect end complete.
Type ar Print Name of Treasurer Robert Hitchens
Sigpature of Treasrer  Elccronically Filed by - Robert Hitchens pete 10 16 20086

NOTE : Submission of fale, emohecus. ar incompleta Infomatian may aubjactthe pereon signing this Repot to the penatiias of 2.U.5.C 437.

Qffice
Use

Only

FEC FORM 3

{Revisad Q2¢2008)
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DETAILED SUMMARY PAGE

. of Disbursemants

FEC Form2 |Revized 02/2003)

17. OPERATING EXPEMDITURES.......o..... 36.00 72.00
18. TRANSFERS TO OTHER
AUTHORIZED COMMITTEES................ .00 0.0
18. LODAN REPAYMENTS.
[B) Ot Loans Made or Guaraihteed
by the Candidede...........ooooe e 0.00 0.00
{D) OF &l ONET LOBM.....vser e e e sr e 0.0D 0.00
{c) TOTAL LOAN REPAYMENTS
(add Unas 19(ay-and {b)}........cceeeeeeee .00 0.00
20. REFUNDS OF COMTRIBUTIONS TO: o
(8) Indhiduaia/Persons Other 0.00 '
Than Poitical Commiltaes................. * 0.00
(b) Polttical Party Commitlaes.................. 0.0D 0.00
(t) Other Poitical Commiiltees
(SUCH 88 PRCS). .o e v e 0.00 0.00
{® TOTAL CONTRIBUTION REFUNDS A
(add Linas 2(ay, ¢b), and {e).... ...... 0.00 0.00
21. OTHER DISBURSEMENTS.......ccccceeveeremenn 0.00 0.00
2. “TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS .
{acd Lines 17, 18.19(c), 20id). and 21 [> 3€6.00 7200
lll. CASH SUMMARY
23. CASH ON HAND AT BEGINNING OF REPORTING PERIOD. .. oeoeoo e e 562.94
24, TOTAL RECEIPTS THIS PERIOD (from Ling 16, PAGEI.c.. oo v e s e 0.00
25. SUBTOTAL QA LING Z3 GNE LING 28)....c.oeve i e et e carcr e v sis se o ensne e sns s 00 20 s00 0w a0 enn e wea an 00 m@
26, TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS THIS PERIOD (o Ling 22). v oo 36.00
27. CASHON HAND AT GLOSE GF REPORTING PERIOD
526.94

(SUtraC] LiNe 26 F1OM LINE 281, ... o cee et e eer e eee e e et v e e ane e ean e 00 om0 o000 00000 a0 00 200 00 anm s snn 00
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY
November 26, 2007
Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer
Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee
P.O. Box 165
Chillicothe, OH 45601

C00414102
AF# 1748

Dear Mr. Hitchens:

On July 12, 2007, the Federal Election Commission (“Commission”) found reason to believe
(“RTB”) that the Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and you, as Treasurer (“respondents”), violated
2 US.C. § 434(a) for failing to file the-2007 April Quarterly Report. The Commission also made a
preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $4,500 based on the schedule of penalties at
11 CF.R. §111.43.

After reviewing the written response and any supplemental information submitted by you and
Commission staff, the Reviewing Officer has recommended that the Commission make a final
determination in this matter. A copy of the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation is attached.

You may file with the Commission Secretary a written response to the recommendation within
10 days of the date of this letter. Your written response should be sent to the Commission Secretary, 999
E Street, NW, Washington, DC 20463. As a result of the anthrax threat in the Washington, DC area, US
Postal Service mail delivery to federal agencies, including the Commission, has been interrupted. Until
regular mail delivery resumes, you may also file your written response with the Commission Secretary
via facsimile (202-208-3333) or by courier at the same address (if you use an overnight delivery service,
please use zip code 20004 instead of zip code 20463). Please include the AF # in your response. Your
response may not raise any arguments not raised in your original written response or not directly
responsive to the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation. 11 C.F.R. § 111.36(f). The Commission will
then make a final determination in this matter.

Please contact me at the toll free number 800-424-9530 (press O, then press 1660) or
202-694-1660 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

A Awgarmen.

Jill I. Sugarman
Reviewing Analyst
Office of Administrative Review

Attachment
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 :

December 11, 2007

MEMORANDUM
To: The Commission
Through: Patrina M. Clark
Staff Director
From: John D. Gibson
' Chief Compliance Officer
Shawn Woodhead We X
Reviewing Officer
Office of Administrativé Review
By: Jill I. Sugarma
Reviewing An
Subject: Final Determination Recommendation in AF# 1748 — Joe Sulzer for

Congress Committee and Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer (C00414102)

On July 12, 2007, the Commission found reason to believe that the respondents violated
2 U.S.C. § 434(a) for failing to file the 2007 April Quarterly Report. Because they had not filed
the report, the Commission made a preliminary determination, using the estimated level of
activity, that the civil money penalty was $4,500 based on the schedule of penalties at
11 CFR. §11143.

At the time of the RTB finding for the April Quarterly Report, the Commission had not
received the report; therefore, the estimated level of activity ($143,057) was used to calculate the
RTB civil money penalty. On August 3, 2007, the respondents filed the April Quarterly Report
which discloses total receipts of $0 and total disbursements of $36, resulting in a level of activity
totaling $36. Since the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43(a)(2) states that a penalty for
respondents with no prior violations shall not exceed the level of activity in the report, the civil
money penalty for the April Quarterly Report is $36 (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty
of $4,500). '

On August 13, 2007, the Commission received the respondents’ written response
(“challenge”). After reviewing the challenge, the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation dated
November 20, 2007 was forwarded to the Commission, a copy was sent to the respondents, and
is hereby incorporated by reference. The Reviewing Officer recommended that the Commission
make a final determination that they violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and based on the actual level of

1
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activity for the April Quarterly reporting period ($36), assess a civil money penalty of $36
because they submitted no evidence that the RTB finding was based on factual errors, that the
civil money penalty was improperly calculated at RTB, or that they used best efforts to file on
time but were prevented from doing so by reasonably unforeseen circumstances that were beyond
their control and they filed the report no later than 24 hours after the end of these circumstances.

Within 10 days of transmittal of the recommendation, the respondents may file a written
response with the Commission Secretary which may not raise any arguments not raised in the
respondents’ challenge or not directly responsive to the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation.
11 CF.R. § 111.36(f). As of this date, a written response has not been received.

OAR Recommendations

(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation for AF# 1748 involving the Joe Sulzer for
Congress Committee and Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer, in making the final determination;

(2) Make a final determination in AF# 1748 that the Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and
Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and, based on the level of activity
disclosed on the April Quarterly Report filed August 3, 2007 ($36), assess a civil money
penalty of $36 (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $4,500); and

(3) Send the appropriate letter.
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
)
Final Determination Recommendation: ) AF 1748
Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and )
Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer )
(C00414102) )
CERTIFICATION

I, Mary W. Dove, Secretary of the Federal Election Commission, do hereby

certify that on December 17, 2007, the Commission decided by a vote of 5-0 to

take the following actions in AF 1748:

1.

3.

Adopt the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation for AF #1748
involving the Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and Robert
Hitchens, as Treasurer, in making the final determination, as
recommended in the Reviewing Officer’s Memorandum dated
December 11, 2007.

Make a final determination in AF #1748 that Joe Sulzer for
Congress Committee and Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer, violated

2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and, based on the level of activity disclosed on
the April Quarterly Report filed August 3, 2007 ($36), assess a civil
money penalty of $36 (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty
of $4,500).

Send the appropriate letter.

Commissioners Lenhard, Mason, von Spakovsky, Walther and Weintraub

voted affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

December 20, 2007

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Robert Hitchens, as Treasurer
Joe Sulzer for Congress Congress
P.O. Box 165

Chillicothe, OH 45601

C00414102
AF# 1748

Dear Mr. Hitchens:

On July 12, 2007, the Federal Election Commission ("the Commission") found reason to
believe ("RTB") that the Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and you, as Treasurer, violated
2 US.C. § 434(a) for failing to file the 2007 April Quarterly Report. By letter dated July 16,
2007, the Commission sent you notification of the RTB finding that included a civil money
penalty calculated at RTB of $4,500 in accordance with the schedule of penalties at
11 CFR. § 111.43. On August 13, 2007, the Office of Administrative Review received the
written response from Mr. Sulzer challenging the RTB finding.

The Reviewing Officer reviewed the Commission’s RTB finding with its supporting
documentation and the written response. Based on this review, the Reviewing Officer
recommended that the Commission reduce the RTB civil money penalty because it was
calculated on an estimated level of activity, make a final determination that the Joe Sulzer for
Congress Committee and you, as Treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and, based on the actual
level of activity disclosed on the 2007 April Quarterly Report filed August 3, 2007 ($36), assess
a civil money penalty in the amount of $36 in accordance with 11 C.F.R. § 111.43. The basis for
the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation was included in the Final Determination Report, a
copy of which was sent to you on November 20, 2007.

On December 17, 2007, the Commission adopted the Reviewing Officer's
recommendation, made a final determination that the Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee and
you, as Treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) and based on the level of activity disclosed on the
2007 April Quarterly Report ($36), assessed a civil money penalty of $36 (reduced from the
RTB civil money penalty of $4,500). It is based on the same factors used to calculate the civil
money penalty at RTB except that the actual rather than the estimated level of activity was used.
A copy of the final determination memorandum is attached.

To Pay the Civil Money Penalty

To pay the civil money penalty, send the enclosed form and payment to the address on
page 3 within 30 days of receipt of this letter.
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If You Do Not Pay the Civil Money Penalty

Unpaid civil money penalties assessed through the Administrative Fine regulations will
be subject to the Debt Collection Act of 1982 ("DCA") as amended by the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996 ("DCIA"), 31 U.S.C. § 3701 et seq. If you do not pay this debt within
30 days (or file a written petition to a federal district court - see below), the Commission will
transfer the debt to the U.S. Department of the Treasury ("Treasury") for collection. Within 5
days of the transfer to Treasury, Treasury will contact the debtor and request payment. Treasury
currently charges a fee of 28% of the civil money penalty amount for its collection services. The
fee will be added to the amount of the civil money penalty that you owe. Should Treasury’s
attempts fail, Treasury will refer the debt to a private collection agency ("PCA"). If the debt

remains unpaid, Treasury may recommend that the Commission refer the matter to the
Department of Justice for litigation.

If You Choose to Appeal the Final Determination and/or Civil Money Penalty

If you choose to appeal the final determination, you should submit a written petition,
within 30 days of receipt of this letter, to the district court of the United States for the district in
which the committee or treasurer reside, or transact business, requesting that the final
determination be modified or set aside. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(4)(C)(iii). Your failure to raise
an argument in a timely fashion during the administrative process shall be deemed a waiver of

the respondents' right to present such argument in a petition to the district court under
2US.C.§437g. 11CF.R.§111.38.

The confidentiality provisions at 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(12) no longer apply and this matter
is now public. The file will be made a part of the public record pursuant to
11 CFR. § 111.42(b). Although the file must be placed on the public record within 30 days
from the date of the Commission's notification, this could occur at any time following
certification of the Commission's vote.

If you have any questions regarding the payment of the civil money penalty, please
contact Jill I. Sugarman on our toll free number (800)424-9530 (press O, then ext. 1660) or
(202)694-1660.

Sincerely,

\

Robert D. Lenhard
Chairman

Attachment
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ADMINISTRATIVE FINE PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS

In accordance with the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43, the civil money
penalty is $36 for the 2007 April Quarterly Report.

This penalty should be paid by check or money order, made payable to the Federal
Election Commission. It should be sent by mail to:

Federal Election Commission
PO Box 979058
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

If you choose to send your payment by courier or overnight delivery, please use this address:

U.S. Bank - Government Lockbox

FEC # 979058

1005 Convention Plaza

Attn: Government Lockbox, SL-MO-C2GL
St. Louis, MO 63101

The form and payment are due within 30 days of receipt of this letter.

PAYMENTS BY PERSONAL CHECK

Personal checks will be converted into electronic funds transfers (EFTs). Your account
will be electronically debited for the amount on the check, usually within 24 hours, and the debit
will appear on your regular statement. We will destroy your original check and keep a copy of it.
In case the EFT cannot be processed for technical reasons, you authorize us to process the copy
in lieu of the original check. Should the EFT not be completed because of insufficient funds, we
may try to make the transfer twice.

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN THE PORTION BELOW WITH YOUR PAYMENT

FOR: Joe Sulzer for Congress Committee
FEC ID#: C00414102
AF#: 1748

PAYMENT AMOUNT DUE: $36
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SULZER FOR CONGRESS COMMITTEE
38 SOUTH PAINT STREET
CHILLICOTHE, OHIO 45601
740-774-6320

Robert Hitchens,
Treasurer

January 24, 2008

Federal Election Commission
P. O. Box 979058
St. Louis, Mo. 63197-9000

RE: FEC ID#: C00414102
AF#:1715 & 1748

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed please a find check from the Committee payable to the Federal Election
Commission in the sum of $66.00.

This payment is for penalties imposed by the FEC in the above referenced matters.

Payment stubs from the FEC accompany the check.

Sincerely yours,

Josef)h. P. Sulzer



FOR: Joe SulzerforCo.ssConumttee e

FEC ID#: C00414102

1748

AF#:

PAYMENT AMOUNT DUE: $36
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington DC 20463

THIS IS THE END OF ADMINISTRATIVE FINE CASE# /7YY

DATE SCANNED 2)2-0&

SCANNER NO. A

SCAN OPERATOR Irs—
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